
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, January 8, 2014 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the December 18, 2013 Meeting 

3. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Related to the Public Lands and Institutions 
District 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to create Section 5-
102(a)(15) and to amend Section 5-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the 
Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, relating to the Public Lands & 
Institutions (PLI) district uses and standards 

4. Certified Survey Map – 801 Bushnell Street – First Congregational Church 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit 

5. Certified Survey Map – 4003 S. Walters Road  
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
4003 S. Walters Road in the Town of Beloit 

6. Zoning Map Amendment – Various Properties Located on North and Sixth Street 
near the Beloit Memorial High School campus 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning district classification from R-1B, Single Family Residential District, and R-2, 
Two-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District for the 
properties located at 219 and 225 North Street; and 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, 1257, 
1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349  and 1353 Sixth Street 

7. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Relating to Nonconforming Uses and Structures  
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to repeal and recreate 
Sections 9.1.1 and 9.1.2 and to amend Sections 9.1.4, 9.2.1(A) and 9.2.2.(E) of the 
Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, 
relating to nonconforming uses and structures 



8. Conditional Use Permit – 1029 Fourth Street – Vehicle Repair 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle 
repair in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1029 
Fourth Street 

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

10. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  January 3, 2014 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



Page 1 of 2 

 
 

MINUTES 
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, December 18, 2013  

The Forum, Beloit City Hall 
100 State Street, Beloit 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Gail Riddle called 
the roll. Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Moore, Kelly, Nee, Ruster, and 
Kincaid.   
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the December 4, 2013 Meeting 
Commissioner Nee moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded approval of the 
Minutes of the December 4, 2013 meeting.  The Minutes were approved (6-0). 
 

3. Conditional Use Permit – 601, 605, 645, 655, and 701 Third Street - 
Ironworks 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
Office and Health Club uses at the Ironworks location in a M-2, General 
Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 601, 605, 645, 655, and 701 
Third Street 
 
Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mark Membrino, Hendricks Commercial Properties LLC, was present for 
questions. 
 
Mr. Membrino discussed and reviewed details of the project in response to Plan 
Commissioners questions.  
 
Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit and 
Commissioner Kelly seconded the motion.  The motion carried (6-0). 
 

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen commented that the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and the 
Zoning Map Amendment for the final house on the Gaston School site was 
approved. 
 
The Conditional Use Permit for Domino’s Pizza was approved. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 
The PUD for Burton Street will be revisited and an informational meeting is 
scheduled for January 7, 2014. 
 

5. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:33 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
Gail Riddle 



January 8 Staff Report 3, ZTA, PLI

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: ZTA-2014-02

Request Overview/Background Information:
Planning staff has drafted and the City Attorney has reviewed an Ordinance to create Section 5-102(a)(15) and to amend
Section 5-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, relating to
Public Lands & Institutions (PLI) district uses and standards.

Key Issues:
 The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate major public and quasipublic uses

(e.g. parks, churches, colleges, schools, etc.).
 Planning staff drafted the attached Ordinance in response to an emerging trend in the community involving the

closure and/or consolidation of church buildings. Many of these church buildings or portions thereof remain vacant
and underutilized. The attached Ordinance also legalizes all of the existing Day Care Centers and Community
Services that are operated or sponsored by existing church congregations.

 Section 1 of the attached Ordinance adds Day Care Centers and Community Services to the list of uses that are
permitted by-right in PLI districts. Planning staff has been contacted by different entities that would like to
purchase or lease vacant space in church buildings to operate these compatible uses, which are currently
prohibited under the existing PLI standards. Community Services are defined as “uses of a public, nonprofit, or
charitable nature generally providing a local service to people of the community, whether publicly or privately
owned.” Examples include senior centers, community centers, youth clubs, and vocational training centers.

 Section 2 of the attached Ordinance simplifies the development standards in PLI districts by adopting the
standards that are applicable in the most restrictive adjacent zoning district. Since PLI districts are intended to be
part of the fabric of a given neighborhood, it is logical to adopt the neighborhood’s development standards. The
most significant changes in Section 2 involve replacing the current minimum lot area and lot width standards,
which are one acre and 100 feet, respectively. These standards are ill-equipped to deal with the subdivision of
existing PLI lots, which are often smaller than one acre. Section 2 of the attached Ordinance adopts the minimum
lot area and lot width standards in the most restrictive adjacent zoning district, which will ensure compatibility with
the neighborhood.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The attached Ordinance may reduce dependence upon fossil fuels by
encouraging the adaptive reuse of existing institutional buildings, thereby capitalizing on the embodied energy in
these structures and increasing the land use mix within existing neighborhoods.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance to create Section 5-
102(a)(15) and to amend Section 5-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the
City of Beloit, relating to Public Lands & Institutions (PLI) district uses and standards.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Public Notice and Proposed Ordinance



January 8 Staff Report 3, ZTA, PLI



January 8 Staff Report 3, ZTA, PLI



January 8 Staff Report 3, ZTA, PLI



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2014-02

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: First Congregational Church Location: 801 Bushnell Street

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District & Wellhead Overlay

Existing Land Use: Church & Vacant
Structure

Total Area: 1.496 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 801 Bushnell Street. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the
Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City where there is no
dedication of land to the City.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to separate the existing, vacant church-owned building addressed as 627 Church

Street from the remainder of the parcel in order to convey this parcel to a day care operator. The structure located at
627 Church Street was once on a separate parcel, but was combined with the church campus at some point. The
structure was most recently used as the church’s resale shop, but has been vacant for many years.

 Proposed Lot 1 is 9,210 square feet in area and includes 66.41 feet of frontage on Church Street, and will be formally
reassigned the 627 Church Street address. Proposed Lot 2 is 55,971 square feet in area and includes the remainder of
the church campus, with frontage on Church Street, Bushnell Street, and Park Avenue.

 Planning staff has proposed changes to the permitted use, minimum lot area, and minimum lot width standards in PLI
districts that will allow the proposed CSM to be signed and recorded. If staff’s proposed changes are adopted by the
City Council, this existing PLI district will be subject to the minimum lot area and lot width standards applicable in the
adjacent R-1B, Single-Family Residential District (8,750 square feet and 50 feet, respectively). Both proposed lots
meet these standards. Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval stipulating that approval of this land
division is contingent upon City Council approval of the proposed changes to PLI district uses and standards.

 The structure located at 627 Church Street is a contributing structure in the College Park Historic District. Planning
staff opposed the church’s 2010 request to demolish the structure, and urged the church to commission a CSM and to
convey the structure for rehabilitation as an alternative to demolition. If the proposed CSM is approved, Lot 1 will
remain in the historic district and Lot 2 will remain an Individual Historic Landmark.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential, including supportive institutional uses, for the subject
property. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The preservation and enhancement of historic structures reduces

dependence upon fossil fuels by capitalizing on the embodied energy that is present in these structures.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street.
2. Planning staff may not sign the attached CSM until the City Council approves revised PLI uses & standards.
3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2014.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution.



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



January 8 Staff Report 4, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 801 BUSHNELL STREET

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City
of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of
the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within
the jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 801
Bushnell Street, containing 1.496 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of
Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

Lots 1, 2, 13, 14, 15, 16 and part of Lots 3 and 12 of Block 21 of the Original Plat of
the City of Beloit made by John Hopkins, being all a part of the N.W. ¼ of the S.W.
¼ of Section 36, T. 1 N., R. 12 E. of the Fourth P.M., City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located at 801 Bushnell Street, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street.
2. Planning staff may not sign the attached CSM until the City Council approves revised PLI

uses & standards.
3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31,

2014.

Adopted this 8th day of January, 2014.

__
James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CSM-2014-01

Applicant: RH Batterman Owner: Wisconsin Power & Light Co. Location: 4003 S. Walters Road, Town
of Beloit

Existing Zoning: I-1, Light Industrial
District (Town Zoning)

Existing Land Use: Vacant CSM Area: 3.565 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of a
Minor Subdivision and one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 4003 S. Walters Road in the Town of
Beloit within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the property
involved in this application.

Key Issues:
 The proposed CSM will create Proposed Lot 1. The current owner intends to sell this lot to a neighboring business

owner.
 Proposed Lot 1 is 3.565 acres in area and is located on Townline Road east of the intersection with S. Walters Road.

It includes approximately 310-feet of frontage on Townline Road. The parent parcel will retain 103 acres of land once
the property has been subdivided.

 The City’s Review Agents have not submitted any comments, concerns, or recommendations.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The property is outside the boundaries of the Future Land Use Map. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit
Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for
the property located at 4003 S. Walters Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition:

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning and
Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2014.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM, and Resolution.













RESOLUTION
APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4003 S WALTERS ROAD
IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of
Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the
City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 4003 S.
Walters Road in the Town of Beloit is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

PART OF OUT-LOT 4-2 OF THE ASSESSORS PLAT OF BELOIT TOWNSHIP AS
SITUATED IN THE N.W. 1/4 OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 2, T.1 N., R.12 E. OF
THE 4TH P.M., BELOIT TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN (A/K/A 4003 S
Walters Road) Containing 3.565 acres, more or less.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 4003 S.
Walters Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition:

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide
the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31,
2014.

Adopted this 8th day of January, 2014.

James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairperson

ATTEST:

___
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: ZMA-2013-10

Applicant: School District of Beloit Owner: School District of Beloit Location: 219 & 225 North Street;
1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, 1257, 1313,
1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343,
1349 & 1353 Sixth Street

Current Zoning: R-2, Two-Family
Residential & R-1B, SF Residential
Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands
& Institutions District

Existing Land Use: Vacant &
Residential

Total Area: 3.0975 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from R-2, Two-Family Residential District, and R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands
& Institutions District, for the properties located at 225 & 219 North Street and 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, 1257, 1313, 1317,
1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding
area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Residential
 South: R-2, Two-Family Residential District; Residential
 East: PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District; Beloit Memorial High School parking and recreation facilities
 West: R-1B & R-2; Residential

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 This request is related to the proposed expansion of sports facilities at Beloit Memorial High School. On March 4,

2013, the City Council adopted an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive
Plan to recommend Institutional & Community Services for the subject properties.

 The properties located at 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, & 1257 Sixth Street are currently zoned R-2 and the properties
located at 219 & 225 North Street and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street are
currently zoned R-1B. All of the subject properties must be rezoned to PLI before the school grounds may be
expanded as planned.

 The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate major public and quasi-public uses.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, no

comments have been received.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in

Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 There are residential uses surrounding this property. The proposed expanded PLI district is
compatible with these existing uses and the proposed school grounds expansion is expected
to have a positive impact upon the neighborhood.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 This request involves a proposed expansion of an existing PLI district, and will establish Sixth

Street as the new western boundary of the district. While the 1200 block of Sixth Street is not
fully occupied by the applicant, their goal is the gain ownership of these properties in the
future. At that time, additional Zoning Map Amendments will be needed.



c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
and

 The subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted in the existing zoning
classifications.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The subject properties are located within an established neighborhood that has experienced

very little redevelopment activity during the past decade. However, Beloit Memorial High
School has expanded their pool and is building new tennis courts.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional & Community Service uses and a zoning district classification of PLI
for the subject properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required
by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-2, Two-Family
Residential District, and R-1B, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the
properties located at 219 & 225 North Street and 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, 1257, 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339,
1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.





looking west towar
1300 Block of Sixth Street
View from current sports fields on Fourth Street

ds Sixth Street















January 8 Staff Report 7, ZTA-2014-01, Nonconforming

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ZTA-2014-01

Request Overview/Background Information:
Planning staff has drafted and the City Attorney has reviewed an Ordinance to repeal and recreate Sections 9.1.1 and
9.1.2 and to amend Sections 9.1.4, 9.2.1(A), and 9.2.2(E) of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General
Ordinances of the City of Beloit, relating to nonconforming uses and structures.

Key Issues:
 The attached Ordinance is a direct result of recent changes to the Wisconsin Statutes pertaining to

nonconforming uses and structures.
 Sections 1 – 4 of the attached Ordinance will bring the Zoning Ordinance into compliance with the revised state

statutes and eliminate redundancy by replacing and revising key definitions.
 Section 5 of the attached Ordinance includes the most substantive change, based upon 2011 Wisconsin Act 170.

This change deals with legal nonconforming structures or “grandfathered” structures, which are existing structures
that do not comply with development standards (e.g. setbacks, height, etc.). Prior to 2011 Wisconsin Act 170, the
Zoning Ordinance limited the cost of repairs to a damaged nonconforming structure to 50% of its value, or 80%
for historic structures. Accordingly, if the cost of repairs exceeded these limits, the structure could not be
reconstructed on the same footprint, and would have to comply with current development standards. 2011
Wisconsin Act 170 effectively prohibited municipalities from imposing these limits. The attached Ordinance
removes all of the limitations upon restoration and repair of a legal nonconforming structure.

 The attached Ordinance is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Text Amendment procedures
contained in the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance to repeal and recreate
Sections 9.1.1 and 9.1.2 and to amend Sections 9.1.4, 9.2.1(A), and 9.2.2(E) of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the
Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, relating to nonconforming uses and structures.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Public Notice and Proposed Ordinance



January 8 Staff Report 7, ZTA-2014-01, Nonconforming



January 8 Staff Report 7, ZTA-2014-01, Nonconforming



January 8 Staff Report 7, ZTA-2014-01, Nonconforming



January 8 Staff Report 7, ZTA-2014-01, Nonconforming



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2014 Agenda Item: 8 File Number: CU-2014-01

Applicant: M&H Maintenance Owner: Beloit Body & Fender, LLC Location: 1029 Fourth Street

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Vacant Building Total Area: 0.0992 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
M&H Maintenance has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle repair in a C-3, Community
Commercial District, for the property located at 1029 Fourth Street.

Key Issues:
 This property is currently vacant. The applicant plans to rent the subject property and operate a full-scale vehicle

repair shop. Vehicle repair is a conditional use in a C-3 district.
 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and the underlying zoning of the

surrounding area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:
o North: C-3, Community Commercial District; Residential
o South: C-3, Community Commercial District; Commercial (Vehicle Repair)
o East: R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District; Residential
o West: C-3, Community Commercial District; Vacant

 The subject property includes a 787 square-foot building which includes one overhead door facing Fourth Street.
 According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the subject property must include 4 off-street parking stalls

per service bay. Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will require the applicant to stripe the
parking stalls at the approved dimensions in the Zoning Ordinance.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have the following comments:
o Fire Department noted that proper disposal and handling of waste oil and flammable liquids is necessary

for this use.
o Engineering is requiring space to turn around on site as to negate backing out onto Fourth Street. They

are also requiring the driveway to be on the subject property as it is currently on the lot to the north, 1035
Fourth Street. This lot is also owned by Beloit Body & Fender, LLC.

o No other comments or concerns were submitted.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to nine nearby property owners. Staff has not received any comments or

concerns.
 A landscape strip will be required between the subject property and Fourth Street.
 For adequate parking and driveway space, the northern property line needs to be moved further north. This will

allow for parking stalls along the northern property line with sufficient turning and driving space. This will also
incorporate the existing curb cut into the subject property.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval, the proposed conditional use will not be detrimental
to or endanger public health, safety, or welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding property uses.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the

neighborhood of the subject property;
 The occupancy and improvement of the subject property is expected to have a positive

impact upon property values in the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development

and improvement of the surrounding property;
 The establishment of the conditional use will not impede nearby development, so long as the

site is repaired/upgraded as recommended by staff.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar



or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed site layout and landscaping changes will be a positive enhancement of the site.
No changes have been proposed for the building at this time. Planning staff will review any
future exterior alterations during the Architectural Review process to ensure compatibility with
the neighborhood.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 Subject to conditions of approval, the existing street network is capable of handling any
additional traffic generated by the conditional use.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Mixed Use for the subject property, which is intended to guide the
future redevelopment of this corridor. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle repair in
the C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1029 Fourth Street, based on the above Findings of
Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes vehicle repair within the existing building, but vehicle repair may not occur
outside of the building.

2. Junk vehicles (as defined in Chapter 7) shall not be stored outside.
3. Vehicles may not be sold on site unless the applicant obtains an auto dealer’s license from the State of

Wisconsin.
4. A Plat of Survey shall be submitted to Planning Staff for review to move the northern property line a minimum of

20 feet to the north to incorporate the existing curb-cut onto the subject property. This must be recorded with the
Rock County Register of Deeds by March 1, 2014.

5. The applicant shall remove the adjacent fence and expand the asphalt to accommodate at least four (4) parking
stalls by June 1, 2014. This will require Site Plan Review to be completed.

6. Following this expansion, the applicant shall stripe the lot in accordance with Section 8-113 of the Zoning
Ordinance by June 1, 2014.

7. The applicant shall follow Landscaping and Green Space requirements in accordance with Section 34.21 of the
Architectural Review and Landscape Code.

8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Site Sketch, Public Notice, and Mailing List.





Pro
Looking East from Fourth Street
posed New Northern Property Line












